
 
MINNESOTA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY BOARD 

 
Wednesday, June 18, 2014 

 
Meeting Location:  MPCA Board Room 

St. Paul, Minnesota 
1:00 p.m. – 3:30 p.m. 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE SUBCOMMITTEE AGENDA 

 
 The purpose of this meeting will be to discuss the Environmental Protection Agency’s release of a draft Clean Air 
Act rule under Section 111(d) to reduce carbon emissions from existing power plants.  While the federal government 
sets the rule, Minnesota will design its own implementation plan to meet the rule.  This meeting includes a listening 
session for the public to provide input and comments on the proposed rule. 

 
 

I. Briefing on the Environmental Protection Agency proposed rule to reduce carbon emissions at 
existing power plants  
 
Presenters:  David Thornton, Pollution Control Agency  
  (651-757-2018) 
  Frank Kohlasch, Pollution Control Agency  
  (651-757-2500) 
 

II. What climate change means for Minnesota 
 
Presenter:  Mark Seeley, State Climatologist 
 
 

III. Minnesota’s leadership and ongoing activities to prepare for addressing the rule  
 
Presenters:  Brad Crabtree, Great Plains Institute  
  Scott Wilensky, Xcel Energy 
 

IV. Listening session for the public to make comments 
 

V. Ongoing activities the state is engaged in to meet statutory greenhouse gas reduction goals 
 
Presenter:  Anna Henderson, Environmental Quality Board  

 (651-757-2456) 
 Bill Grant, Department of Commerce 
 (651-296-9325) 
 Brandon Toner, Department of Employment and Economic Development 
 (651-259-7218) 
 Kristin Raab, Department of Health 
 (651-201-4893) 

 
VI. Adjourn 





 
MINNESOTA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY BOARD 

 
Wednesday, June 18, 2014 

 
Meeting Location:  MPCA Board Room 

St. Paul, Minnesota 
3:30 p.m. – 4:00 p.m 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
I. *Adoption of Consent Agenda 
  Proposed Agenda for June 18, 2014 Board Meeting 
  May Meeting Minutes 
 
II. Introductions 
 
III. Chair’s Report 
 
IV. Executive Director’s Report  

 
V. **Minnesota Sands multi-site EIS  
 
VI. Adjourn 

 
 
 

Note: Items on the agenda are preliminary until the agenda is approved by the board. 
 
 
This agenda and schedule may be made available in other formats, such as Braille, large type or audiotape, upon request. People with disabilities 
should contact Elizabeth Tegdesch, Board Administrator, as soon as possible to request an accommodation (e.g., sign language interpreter) to 
participate in these meetings. 
 





 
MINNESOTA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY BOARD 

 
Wednesday, June 18, 2014 

 
Meeting Location:  MPCA Board Room 

St. Paul, Minnesota 
3:30 p.m. – 4:00 p.m. 

 
ANNOTATED AGENDA 

 
I. *Adoption of Consent Agenda 
  Proposed Agenda for, June 18, 2014 Board Meeting 
  May Meeting Minutes 
 
II. Introductions 

 
III. Chair’s Report 
 
IV. Executive Director’s Report 

 
V. **Whether the Michelle and Tracie Erickson 19.11 acre mine site is a phased action to the 

Minnesota Sands multi-site EIS project. 
 

Presenter: Kate Frantz, EQB Staff 
  651-757-2370 

 
Materials enclosed: 
· Attachment 1: June 18, 2014 EQB Resolution, Findings of Fact, Conclusion and Order for Erickson 
· Attachment 2: Minnesota Sands, LLC Project list letter to EQB, provided by Minnesota Sands 
· Attachment 3: Minnesota Sands, LLC Lease agreements between Minnesota Sands, LLC and Tracie 

and Michelle Erickson, Leonard and Kathleen Tostenson, Porteous E. Olson, Thomas and Virginia 
Johnson, and dissolutions and Minnesota Sands letter to Houston County, provided by Minnesota 
Sands 

· Attachment 4: Response to questions from May 21 EQB meeting, provided by Houston County 
· Attachment 5: Houston County Conditional Use Order, provided by Houston County 
· Attachment 6: Houston County Board Directive April 8, 2014, provided by Houston County 
· Attachment 7: Conditional Use Permit Renewals for Quarries, provided by Houston County 
· Attachment 8: City Ordinance and Minnesota Statute, provided by Houston County 
· Attachment 9: Lease agreements between Minnesota Sands, LLC and Tracie and Michelle Erickson, 

Leonard and Kathleen Tostenson, Porteous E. Olson, Thomas and Virginia Johnson, and dissolutions 
and Minnesota Sands letter to Houston County, provided by Houston County 

· Attachment 10: DNR letter to Houston County, provided by Houston County 
· Attachment 11: Houston County letter in response to DNR letter, provided by Houston County 
· Attachment 12: Writ of Mandamus, provided by Johanna Rupprecht, Land Stewardship Project 

 
                                                           
* Items requiring discussion may be removed from the Consent Agenda 
**Denotes a Decision Item 



 
Issue before the Board:  
Determination of whether the Michelle and Tracie Erickson 19.11 acre mine site is a phased action of 
the Minnesota Sands multi-site EIS project.  This decision was heard and tabled at the May 21, 2014 
EQB meeting.   
 
Background:  
· On March 5, 2013, the Houston County Board of Commissioners submitted a letter to the EQB, 

requesting the EQB reconsider the RGU for the multiple Minnesota Sands projects both in Houston 
County and in neighboring counties.  

· On March 20, 2013, the EQB reconsidered the RGU for the multiple Minnesota Sands, LLC 
projects. 11 sites were identified as phased actions of the Minnesota Sands, LLC multi-site project 
that exceeded the threshold for a mandatory EIS. One of the phased actions included in the 
Minnesota Sands, LLC multi-site project was a 19.11 acre site owned by Tracie and Michelle 
Erickson.  

· The Erickson site is seeking a conditional use permit renewal from Houston County.  
 
Discussion:  At this time, the EQB has received a statement of intent from Minnesota Sands, LLC 
(Attachment 2), but has not yet received payment for scoping or a signed cost agreement. 
 
EQB staff has fielded numerous inquiries from the project proposer, the Erickson property, Houston 
County, and the general public, about the status of the Erickson site; specifically, whether or not it can 
be removed as a phased action from the multi-site EIS based on the attached agreement that purportedly 
terminates the contract between the parties. The question before the EQB is whether or not, given the 
information provided, the Erickson site is a phased action of the multi-site Minnesota Sands, LLC EIS as 
defined in March 2013. All parties have been put on notice to provide background information and have 
been invited to this meeting to field questions so the Board may consider this resolution. 
 
Staff Recommendation:   
Based on the evidence provided to date, staff recommends the approval of the resolution. 

 
VI. Adjourn 
 



 

MINNESOTA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY BOARD 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
Wednesday, May 21, 2014 

MPCA Room Board Room, 520 Lafayette Road N, St. Paul 
 
EQB Members Present:  Dave Frederickson, Kate Knuth, Mike Rothman, John Saxhaug, Erik 
Tomlinson, Charlie Zelle, Spencer Cronk, Kristen Eide-Tollefson, Tom Landwehr, Dr. Ed Ehlinger,  
Katie Clark-Sieben, Julie Goehring, Brian Napstad, John Linc Stine, Sandy Rummel (Met Council),  
Leah Hedman, Attorney General’s Office 
 
EQB Members Absent:  None 
 
Staff Present:  Will Seuffert (EQB), Kate Frantz (EQB), Megan Eischen (EQB), Caroline Magnuson 
(EQB), Erik Dahl (EQB), Anna Henderson (EQB), Beth Tegdesch (MPCA for EQB) 
  
Chair Dave Frederickson called the meeting to order at 1:04 p.m.  
 
I. Adoption of Consent Agenda and Minutes 

A motion to adopt the Consent Agenda and approve the March 19, 2014, meeting minutes was 
made and seconded.  

II. Introductions 

III.  Chair’s Report 
     No report 

IV. Executive Director’s Report 
Belated thanks to those who were able to make the trip to Rochester for the March EQB Board 
meeting. The Silica Sand Rulemaking Advisory Panel continues to meet monthly, most recently 
on Friday, May 16th in Oronoco, to discuss reclamation requirements. As a reminder, the EQB 
rulemaking will address environmental review thresholds for silica sand mining, storage, and 
processing. A draft rule and a statement of need and reasonableness will come before the Board 
later this year pending the progress made with the Panel.  
 
The Climate Change subcommittee met on March 28 to discuss various policy options for 
consideration and the climate strategies and economic opportunities analysis, also known as 
CSEO. As a reminder CSEO will analyze the greenhouse gas reduction potential cost and job 
impacts for a wide variety of policy options that have been suggested by stakeholders and 
interagency experts. Intensive interagency work is ensued and progress is being made on this 
project, as well as editing and the framework report which is on schedule for your review by the 
next meeting in June. The National Governor’s Association’s Clean Energy and Economic 
Development project is moving forward, most recently with a stakeholder meeting this morning 
and a multi-state policy academy held in Phoenix last week. The Governor is tentatively hosting a 
summit on July 17th with broad industry and stakeholder participation. I strongly encourage you 
to attend, if you are able. Details will follow. Our next meeting will include detailed presentation 
and status updates on various climate and clean energy initiatives.  
 
Our next meeting will include both a continuation of our water management presentations and 
EIS presentations and also have a climate change subcommittee meeting. 
 
 



Page 2 

There has been broad interest in the status of our website and we are working with the IT team at 
the MPCA to move onto a new content management system to make web development and 
management easier and more self-sustaining. Since this is a new system our timeline is uncertain, 
but we hope to move into that system in August. Once this migration is complete we can begin to 
retool our website.  
 
Welcome to Amy Whooley, the EQB intern for the summer. She will help revise citizen 
documents; she attends the U of M Twin Cities and plans to graduate in December with a degree 
in environmental science policy and management. 

V. Minnesota Sands Multi-site EIS 

The issue before the Board is whether the Michelle and Tracie Erickson 19.11 acre mine is a 
phased action to the Minnesota Sands multi-site EIS project. Kate Frantz, EQB staff, shared the 
basic concepts about environmental review that are applicable in this case. She briefly explained 
mandatory categories, what phased and connected actions are, as well as how they are the same or 
different from cumulative potential effects, and also covered more obscure inclusions from the 
rules including the related actions EIS process as well as the variance process. Kate also shared 
some history of this project. 
 
Approving this Resolution would affirm the Erickson 19.11 acre site is not a phased action and 
would effectively release them from the multi-site EIS that would be completed by the EQB for 
the Minnesota sands project. Your decision on this matter does not relieve this project from other 
environmental review requirements it may be required to complete nor other potential permitting 
requirements Those decisions are not the jurisdiction of the board at this time. The option today is 
whether to adopt the resolution before you, amend the resolution, reject the resolution, or not take 
any action at this time. 
 
Discussion followed.  
 
The following people gave testimony: 

· David Williams, Lanesboro 
· Theresa Walter, Commissioner Chair Houston County 
· Marilyn Frauenkron Bayer, Land Stewardship Project 
· Johanna Rupprecht, Land Stewardship Project 
· Kelley Stanage, Houston, Minnesota 
· Bob Scanlon, Houston County Planning and Zoning  
· Tracie Erickson, Houston County 
· Richard Frick, Minnesota Sands 
· John Dustman, consultant from Summit Envirosolutions in St. Paul to Minnesota Sands 

 
Commissioner John Stine made a motion to table the decision item until next month until more 
materials are submitted. Commissioner Rothman seconded. A roll call vote was taken to table the 
decision and passed seven to five. 

VI. Minnesota River Basin Integrated Study Update 

Kate Frantz, EQB, and Jason Smith, Army Corps of Engineers, provided an update on the 
Minnesota River Integrated Watershed Study. 

VII.     Adjourn 



 
 

May 28, 2014 

 

Dear Stakeholders: 

As Co-chairs of the Environmental Quality Board (EQB) Subcommittee for Climate Change 

Planning, we invite you to a Subcommittee Meeting on June 18 at 1pm, in the MPCA Board 

Room.  The purpose of this meeting will be to discuss the Environmental Protection Agency’s 

expected release of a draft Clean Air Act rule under Section 111(d) in June.  We expect the new 

proposed rule to include federal and state collaboration on standards, including requirements for 

a state plan for regulating carbon pollution emissions from existing power plants.  We also 

expect that while the federal government will provide guidelines, Minnesota will design its own 

implementation plan, subject to federal review, to meet those guidelines.  Minnesota is already a 

leader in developing strategies that reduce carbon emissions in a way that grows our economy, 

increases health standards for Minnesota citizens, and protects our natural environment.   

The June 18
th

 meeting will give the public an opportunity to provide us with input and comment 

on the proposed rule.  We will have presentations on efforts already in place to lay the 

groundwork for meeting federal carbon emissions standards.  Further, this will also be an 

opportunity to continue our discussion on strategies to mitigate and adapt to climate change.   

We believe Minnesota is in a strong position to develop a state implementation plan to reduce 

carbon emissions.  We hope to work with all Minnesotans on this important effort.  Please feel 

free to contact us with any questions or comments that you may have. You can contact David 

Thornton, Assistant Commissioner at the MPCA (david.thornton@state.mn.us, phone: 651-757-

2018), or Bill Grant, Deputy Commissioner of Energy and Telecommunications at the 

Department of Commerce (bill.grant@state.mn.us, phone: 651-539-1801), or Anna Henderson, 

Energy and Climate Specialist at the EQB (anna.henderson@state.mn.us, phone: 651-757-2456). 

Thank you. 

Sincerely,  

 

                     
John Linc Stine 

Commissioner 

Minnesota Pollution Control Agency 

Mike Rothman 

Commissioner 

Department of Commerce 

 

 

mailto:david.thornton@state.mn.us
mailto:bill.grant@state.mn.us
mailto:anna.henderson@state.mn.us




 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE  
 

MINNESOTA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY BOARD 
 

Removal of a site from the proposed Minnesota Sands, LLC, multi-site Environmental 
Impact Statement (EIS) ordered on March 20, 2013. 

  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Minnesota Environmental Quality Board approves 

and adopts the Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Order identifying the 19.11 acre 
Erickson proposed project as an action which is not phased and effectively removing it 
from the mines included in the Minnesota Sands, LLC, Environmental Impact Statement 
(EIS); and 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that David J. Frederickson, Chair of the Board, is 

authorized to sign the adopted Findings of Fact, Conclusions and Order. 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1





STATE OF MINNESOTA  
 ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY BOARD 

 
In the Matter of requests to determine   FINDINGS OF FACT 
whether the Erickson 19.11 acre mine site  CONCLUSIONS OF LAW  
in Houston County is a phased action    AND ORDER 
of the Minnesota Sands, LLC     
Multi-site Environmental Impact Statement.  
 
 
The above-captioned matter came before the Minnesota Environmental Quality Board 
(EQB) at a regular meeting on June 18, 2014, pursuant to a request for clarification by 
Houston County. 
 
Based upon all of the proceedings herein, the Minnesota Environmental Quality Board 
makes the following: 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

 
1. The September 3, 2012, EQB Monitor published a notice that Houston County, 

acting as Responsible Governmental Unit (RGU), granted an Environmental 
Assessment Worksheet (EAW) for the Erickson Quarry Project in response to a 
citizen petition.    
 

2. On March 5, 2013, the Houston County Board of Commissioners submitted a 
letter to the EQB, requesting the EQB reconsider the RGU for the multiple 
Minnesota Sands projects both in Houston County and in neighboring counties.  
 

3. On March 20, 2013, the EQB reconsidered and renamed itself the RGU for the 
multi-site Minnesota Sands, LLC project. 
 

4. In the EQB’s Findings, Conclusions, and Order, the EQB found that the mining 
sites listed, including the Erickson 19.11 acre mine site, were phased actions of 
the Minnesota Sands, LLC multi-site project as defined by Minnesota Rules 
4410.0200 Subp. 60. 
 

5. Per Minnesota Rules 4410.2000 Subp. 4, phased actions must be considered in 
total for environmental review.  

 
6. On March 25, 2014, EQB staff sent a letter to Minnesota Sands, LLC, requesting 

an update on the status of the Minnesota Sands, LLC projects, as well as 
clarification of the relationship between the Erickson site and Minnesota Sands, 
LLC. Specifically, the letter requested, “any past, current, or anticipated future 
association and include, but not be limited to, a partnership, ownership, 
shareholder, buyer, seller, processor, transporter, or relationship of any kind.”  

 
7. The EQB received a response on April 5, 2014, from Minnesota Sands, LLC that 

included a Dissolution of Contract, incorporated to these findings by reference. 



 
8. According to the terms of the Dissolution of Contract, Mr. Richard Frick of 

Minnesota Sands, LLC and Tracie and Michelle Erickson are no longer under 
contract for Minnesota Sands, LLC to mine at the Erickson 19.11 acre mine site.    
 
 

9. Minnesota Rule 4410.0200, Subp. 60 reads: 
 
“Phased action” means two or more projects to be undertaken by the same 
proposer that a RGU determines: 
 
A. will have environmental effects on the same geographic area; and 
 
B. are substantially certain to be undertaken sequentially over a limited 
period of time. 
 
Minn. R. 4410.0200, Subp. 60 (2011). 
 

10. The Minnesota Sands, LLC multi-site project and the Erickson mine site are not 
proposed by the same project proposer. 

 
11. Pursuant to MN Rules 4410.4300 Subp 9, a mandatory Environmental Impact 

Statement is required for non-metallic mineral mining projects, “For development 
of a facility of the extraction of mining of sand, gravel, stone or other nonmetallic 
minerals, other than peat, which will excavate 160 acres of land or more to a 
mean depth of ten feet or more during its existence.”  
 

12. The remaining sites identified should move forward to scoping.   
 
Based on the foregoing Findings of Fact, the Minnesota Environmental Quality Board 
makes the following: 

 
CONCLUSIONS 

 
1. Any of the foregoing Findings more properly designated as Conclusions are 

hereby adopted as such.   
 

2. The Environmental Quality Board has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this 
proceeding pursuant to Minnesota Statutes chapter 116D and Minnesota Rules, 
4410.   

 
3. The Erickson 19.11 acre mine is not a phased action to the Minnesota Sands, LLC 

multi-site project pursuant to Minn Rule 4410.0200 Subp. 60.   
 
Based on the Findings of Fact, Conclusions and the entire record of this proceeding, the 
Minnesota Environmental Quality Board hereby makes the following: 



 
ORDER 

The EQB orders a EIS for the Minnesota Sands, LLC multi-site project, without inclusion 
of the Erickson 19.11 acre mine site, as it is not a phased action. 
 
 
Approved and adopted this 18th day of June, 2014. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      David J. Frederickson, Chair 
       Minnesota Environmental Quality Board 
 
 





ATTACHMENT 2





ATTACHMENT 3





















































































































5-23-2014 

Questions from May 21 EQB mtg. 

What is the length of the Thorson/Erickson C.U.P.?  Has it 
expired? 

Under the Ordinance, all mining and extraction c.u.p.’s are under a renewal and 
review period of 5 years.  See the applicable ordinance sections below: 

0110.2710 TERM OF PERMIT  

 

Each Conditional Use Permit approved for mineral extraction shall be valid for a period of five (5) years 
from and after the date of approval, provided the requirements of operation and reclamation, comply 
with the conditions of the permit.   

 

1. An examination of the premises can be made by the Zoning Administrator at any time during 
the term of the operation. 
 

0110.2711 RENEWAL AND REVIEW  

 

Each Conditional Permit shall be renewable for a period of five (5) years upon written application to the 
Zoning Administrator and with the concurrence of the Planning Agency.  However, upon determination 
by the Zoning Administrator, or the County Board, that the operation is in violation of the provisions of 
the Conditional Use Permit or other County Ordinances, a hearing may be held to review the existence of 
any alleged violations. 

 

In addition, a c.u.p. for mining and extraction can only b suspended, or 
terminated if he County Board finds that the permit holder has not complied with 
the mining ordinance.  The Ordinance reads as follows: 

0110.2712 REVOCATION OF PERMIT  

 

ATTACHMENT 4



Upon failure by the holder of a mining permit to fully comply with the provisions contained herein, the 
Zoning Administrator shall certify the non-compliance to the County Board of Commissioners.  

 

Subdivision 1. Notice of Violation. The Board of Commissioners shall give notice to said permit holder 
and owner of the land setting forth the provisions of this Section being violated.   

 

Subd. 2. Hearing. The Board shall set a time and place of a hearing to be held by the Board to consider 
such violation of provisions of this Section.   

 

Subd. 3. Suspension or Termination of Permit. If said Board of Commissioners shall find that provisions 
of this Section have not be complied with by the permit holder then the mining operations permit may be 
suspended or terminated by said Board of Commissioners. 

 

There have been several instances, in Houston County, whereby c.u.p’s for mining 
operations under a 5 year review have not been reviewed and renewed within a 
timely manner.  For example, a mine owner may have submitted the required 
written application in a timely manner but did not meet the exact five year 
deadline because circumstances didn’t allow for it.  For example, the Planning 
Commission meeting did not fall within the 5 year time period but the permit was 
reviewed and renewed at the following month’s meeting.  On these occasions the 
mine operation did not cease operation because of the lack of a review nor did 
the mine operation receive a suspension because the County was unable to act on 
said application.  

The idea of the review is more of an administrative function as it gives Zoning 
staff an opportunity to “check-in” with mining operations to make sure conditions 
of the permit are being followed and to check for any potential violations to the 
Zoning Ordinance.  It also gives Staff an opportunity to inquire about a mine 
operator’s intentions for a possible expansion of the permitted mining area 
and/or review any operation/reclamation plans every 5 years or so. 



It is the opinion of Houston County Zoning Staff that the Thorson/Erickson c.u.p. 
has not expired simply because it did not meet the exact 5 year renewal deadline.  
This is something that happens quite often and not of the fault of the mine 
owner.   

 

Statutes regarding conditional use permits are also important to landowners and 
how counties are required to look at existing c.u.p’s.  Transfers of property in 
Minnesota include a title search.  A title search will, for instance, include recorded 
documents that guarantee that the new owner acquires everything that is 
documented within a purchase agreement.  Such documents may include leans, 
easements, judgments, variances, conditional use permits, etc.  These documents 
are very much part of ownership of a parcel of property that they are attached to.  
In the case of conditional use permits, state statute says the following: 

MN Statute 394.301, subd. 3. Duration.  A conditional use permit shall remain in effect for so 
long as the conditions agreed upon are observed, provided that nothing in this section shall 
prevent the board from enacting or amending official controls to change the status of 
conditional uses. 

The last part of the subdivision above allows county boards to amend Zoning 
Ordinances to change the status of all existing conditional uses.  For example, a 
board may want to make an amendment to the ordinance that requires all 
campgrounds with an existing conditional use permit to submit a plan for the 
expected days of occupancy or to have all septic systems over 20 years old to be 
inspected.   

The point is that conditional uses shall remain in effect as long as certain 
conditions are met and an individual conditional use permit cannot be terminated 
unless said conditions are not met or the County addresses a change to all existing 
similar c.u.p.’s in the form of an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Other “Conditional Uses” within the Houston County Zoning Ordinance that 
require a review and renewal include the following: 



(1)   Temporary Ag Employee Housing.  The C.U.P. shall be reviewed annually 
by the Zoning Administrator.  The Houston County Planning Commission 
shall review any changes to existing permitted plan.   

 

Interim Use Permits –   “Conditional Use Permits” shouldn’t be confused with 
“Interim Use Permits” when considering types of zoning permits.  By statue, 
interim use permits are considered a “temporary” use of property.  This differs 
from conditional use permits that considered “permanent” as they “stay with the 
parcel indefinitely”.  

The Houston County Zoning Ordinance employs the use of interim use permits 
(I.U.P.’s) to certain land uses.  In Houston County, I.U.P’s are subject to expire 
with a change of ownership, or unless otherwise required by the I.U.P.’s 
conditions as determined by the County Board. 

MN Statute 394.303 Interim Uses.  

Subd. 1. Definition. An “interim use” is a temporary use of property until a particular date, until 
the occurrence of a particular event, or until zoning regulations no longer permit it.   

Subd. 2. Authority. Zoning regulations may permit the governing body to allow interim uses.  
The regulations may set conditions on interim uses.  The governing body may grant permission 
for an interim use of property if: 

(1) The use conforms to the zoning regulations; 
(2) The date or event that will terminate the use can be identified with certainty; 
(3) Permission of the use will not impose additional costs on the public if it is necessary 

for the public to take the property in the future; and 
(4) The user agrees to any conditions that the governing body deems appropriate for 

permission of the use.  Any interim use may be terminated by a change in zoning 
regulations. 

The only interim use in Houston County is for “Non-commercial family cabins”. 

 



The Houston County Planning Commission recommended approval of the 
Erickson permit on May 22, 2014.  It will go to the County Board on June 24th for 
final approval. 

 

I hope this helps clarify any process for renewal and review of mining operations 
in Houston County.  Please call me at (507) 725-5800 with any questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

Bob Scanlan – Zoning Adm.  





ATTACHMENT 5









ATTACHMENT 6





ATTACHMENT 7





ATTACHMENT 8





ATTACHMENT 9





















































































































ATTACHMENT 10





 
 
 

 
 
June 3, 2014 
 
To:  Julie Ekman – Conservation Assistance and Regulation Section Manager 
From:  Bob Scanlan – Zoning Adm., Houston County 
Re:  Tracie Erickson mine renewal 
 
Thanks for the opportunity to respond to questions that have been brought up recently in 
regard to the Erickson/Thorson mineral extraction permit issued in 1992.  I’ll refer to 
your letter dated June 2, 2014 in my response. 
 

1) You are correct in your statement, “Mr. Erickson made a timely request for a 
renewal of the Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to mine on November 1, 2012.”  
But the statement that the “permit appears to have expired on January 8, 
2013” is considered inaccurate.  As you know, CUP’s are a recorded 
document signed by the County Board Chair, County Auditor, Zoning Adm., 
and recorded with the property described in the recorded document (see 
enclosed document #166747 Conditional Use Order dated 1-14-92).  These 
documents do not expire unless requirements are not met within the CUP (see 
MN Statute 394.301 subd. 3. And subd. 4.  (copy attached).  Notice that the 
only two conditions attached to the original conditional use order are (1.) 
Mining and extraction operation will be permitted for 5 years subject to 
review for possible extension beyond the 5 years. And (2.) Existing natural 
screening must remain in place.  As both Thorson (former owner) and 
Erickson (current owner) have met both conditions attached to the CUP, the 5 
year reviews have been favorable and the renewals have been granted.  You 
mention, “We understand that the County directed staff to work on a sixty-day 
extension of the expired permit over a year later, on April 21, 2014. But we 
are less clear whether the County took any action on the CUP between 
January 8, 2013 and April 21, 2014”.  Just to be clear, the CUP has not 
expired as you note.  But, the dates you mention are somewhat relevant in that 
I did send a letter to “affected landowners” on April 21, 2014 as directed by 
the County Board on April 8, 2014. (See enclosed letter dated April 21, 2014 
and County Board minutes dated April 8, 2014).  The sixty-day extension 
letter was sent because February 27, 2014 was the date that Houston County 
received a copy of an “Agreement” dated 9-12-13 that dissolved the 
relationship between MN Sands and Tracie Erickson.  From the standpoint of 
Houston County, this triggered the review of the existing CUP from 1992 
because it took several things “off the table” namely the EAW and the EIS for 
the site that was formerly under MN Sands.  This dissolution agreement put 

Zoning Administration l Solid Waste l Recycling 
304 South Marshall Street – Room 202, Caledonia, MN 55921   

Phone: (507) 725-5800 l Fax: (507) 725-5590 
 

HOUSTON COUNTY  

Houston 
County 

National Leader 
In Recycling 

ATTACHMENT 11



the RGU back onto Houston County as the County was the RGU for the 
original CUP and all reviews and renewals since 1992.  (See enclosed 
“Agreement” received Feb. 27, 2014).   

2) You ask the question: “Has the County taken any other action on the CUP 
since April 2014?”  Answer:  On April 8th, after discussion with its land use 
attorney, Jay Squires, the County Board ordered zoning staff to work with 
Erickson to review and renew the existing CUP from 1992.  The Board’s 
minutes state the following: “Motion was made by Commissioner Schuldt, 
seconded by Commissioner Storlie and unanimously carried to direct the staff 
to work with Mr. Erickson in processing his renewal request and extend any 
applicable 60 day rule period an additional 60 days.  In addition, the board 
concludes that processing of this renewal request is not prohibited by the 
express language of the moratorium thereby any pending EAW or EIS 
process; the Board further directs staff to provide notice of the Board’s 
determination to affected property owners and the EQB.”  In addition, the 
Planning Commission acted on the renewal request at their May 22nd meeting.  
The recommended approval of the renewal with an additional condition 
amended to the original CUP that would limit the amount of material taken 
from the mine to 10,000 cu. yds. annually.  This additional condition was 
approved by the Erickson’s as required. (Note: If the Erickson’s had not 
approved the additional 10,000 yd. condition it would have been illegal for the 
Planning Commission to add the condition to the original permit.)  This 
recommendation is tentatively scheduled to go to the County Board for final 
approval on June 24, 2014.   

3) Question:  “What is the current status of the CUP”?  Answer:  The status of 
the CUP is that it is under review for renewal.  The Houston County 
Ordinance Section 0110.2711 Renewal And Review, states the following:  
“Each Conditional Permit shall be renewable for a period of five (5) years 
upon written application to the Zoning Administrator and with the 
concurrence of the Planning Agency.  However, upon determination by the 
Zoning Administrator, or the County Board, that the operation is in violation 
of the provisions of the Conditional Use Permit or other County Ordinances, a 
hearing may be held to review the existence of any alleged violations.”  (see 
enclosed Ordinance section)  As there have been no alleged violations as 
determined by the Zoning Administrator or the County Board, there have been 
no hearings held to review the existence of said alleged violations.  The 
review is currently being done because of the new information brought to the 
County on February 27th (see #1 above).  In addition, the Ordinance does not 
state a deadline for the review or renewal of each mining CUP.  It only states 
that the CUP “shall be renewable for a period of 5 years upon written 
application…”  In fact, these applications are seldom renewed within 5 years 
of the original date on the “Conditional Use Order” document.  (see enclosed 
spreadsheet titled, “Conditional Use Permit Renewals for Quarries”)  As noted 
on the spreadsheet, more times than not, the 5 year review and renewals fall 
beyond five years from the original CUP and/or Conditional Use Order date. 
The dates highlighted on the spreadsheet in red are CUP’s that were not 
reviewed and renewed within 5 years of the original CUP.  All mine 
operators/owners that submitted timely applications for renewal were, in fact 
reviewed and renewed.  All of these mines with the exception of Erickson’s 



mine were allowed to continue to operate during the review and renewal phase 
of their given permits.  Erickson’s mine ceased operation in 2012 because this 
mine was the subject of a “stop work order” issued by the County Board in 
response to a proposal to mine 2.7 million yards of material over 2 years 
under the name MN Sands.  This stop work order is not relevant today as MN 
Sands is no longer associated with the Erickson mine (see “agreement”). 

4)   Question:  “When was mine last operated?”  Answer:  The mine was last 
operated in 2012 prior to the Stop work order issued as stated in #3 above.  In 
fact, sand has been mined yearly from the Thorson/Erickson site for many 
local projects since 1992.  You mention, “The official record for the original 
CUP appears to have approved a one-time excavation of up to 10,000 yards.”  
You are correct; the Planning Commission minutes from 1992 suggest that the 
former owner had an original project that would be able to utilize 8,000-
10,000 yds. of material.  This was not, however, added as a condition to the 
CUP.  For this reason, the mine has been active every year from 1992-2012.  
The mine owners/operators have submitted their applications for renewal and 
review in a timely manner and continuance of the original CUP has remained 
since 1992.  You suggest in #4 that, “more recent renewals have suggested an 
annual excavation of up to 10,000 yards.”  This is inaccurate in that only 
during the May 22nd Planning Commission meeting did Mr. Erickson agree to 
have that amended to the original CUP permit.  The Planning Commission 
recommended approval of the CUP with this added condition to the County 
Board but the Board has not acted on the application as of today.  It is 
tentatively scheduled for June 24, 2014 with the Board of Commissioners.  
(see enclosed email dated 4-24-2014 from Tracie Erickson to add “new 
condition”) 

5)  
The status of the EAW is that it was never finished.  The County Board ordered the 
EAW on August 7, 2012 after a petition was filed with the EQB on July 18, 2012.  In 
a letter dated August 3, 2012 the EQB assigned Houston County as the Responsible 
Governmental Unit (RGU) to respond to the petition.  The basis of the EAW, at the 
time, was based on a proposal to “mine and process approximately two million cubic 
yards of silica sand at the site”.  The mine was also proposing to obtain a DNR water 
appropriation permit for a proposed well.  The basis of the EAW, at the time, was for 
governmental approval of the DNR water appropriation permit and the proposed two 
million yards of excavated material mined over two years.  This was considered a 
“substantial change in the scope” (thus, the reason for the stop work order) and was 
not consistent with the original 1992 CUP.  Preparation of the EAW was started and 
two drafts of the EAW were put together by a company called GGG on behalf of Mr. 
Erickson.  Preparation of the EAW was halted when the EQB decided to require an 
EIS from any mines that were under contract with MN Sands and located in Houston, 
Winona, and Fillmore Counties.  The EQB decided to become the RGU of the 
project, including the Erickson mine that was under contract with MN Sands at the 
time.  As EQB was now the RGU, Houston County had no say in environmental 
review as long as the Erickson quarry was under contract with MN Sands.  Thus the 
EAW was not finished.  It was the thinking of county staff and the Board that an EIS 
was going to be a more intense review of the cumulative effects of the Erickson mine 
and others associated with MN Sands that an EAW was a moot point.  The EAW 
petition and eventual order to complete the EAW had nothing to do with the existing 



1992 CUP for mining and extraction of sand.  It, instead, pertained to the more 
intense mining of silica sand at the Erickson site that was not consistent with the 1992 
CUP.  It was because of the more intense mining (2 million yds. of material over 2 
years) and the need for a high capacity well to accommodate processing (DNR water 
appropriation permit application) that both the stop work order was issued and the 
EAW petition was filed and developed.  But, since the county’s receipt of a 
dissolution agreement between MN Sands and Tracie Erickson, it is believed that the 
EAW is no longer required.  Tracie Erickson is no longer associated with MN Sands, 
is no longer proposing 2 million yards of excavation over 2 years, and is no longer 
proposing a high capacity well to process silica sand.  The scope of the project has 
reverted back to the intent of the original 1992 CUP and Houston County is currently 
finishing up the review and renewal process as required by the County Zoning 
Ordinance. 

If you have any questions regarding the materials I am sending please call me at (507) 
725-5800 or email me at bob.scanlan@co.houston.mn.us.   
 
Once again, thanks for the opportunity to respond. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Bob Scanlan 
Zoning Adm. 
Houston County 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Houston County is an Equal Opportunity Employer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:bob.scanlan@co.houston.mn.us


ATTACHMENT 12














	1. SubcommitteeAgenda 2014_6_18
	2. Agenda 2014_06_18
	3. Annotated Agenda 2014_06_18
	4. EQB DRAFT May 21 Board meeting minutes
	I. Adoption of Consent Agenda and Minutes
	II. Introductions
	III.  Chair’s Report      No report
	IV. Executive Director’s Report
	V. Minnesota Sands Multi-site EIS
	VI. Minnesota River Basin Integrated Study Update
	VII.     Adjourn

	5. 111D Stakeholder letter_Final
	A1. June 18 Resolution 5914_Erickson FCO
	A1. June 2014 Erickson FCO.pdf
	FINDINGS OF FACT
	9. Minnesota Rule 4410.0200, Subp. 60 reads:


	Blank Page

	A2. MNSands_Project List Letter
	A3. MNSands_LeaseAgreementsDissolutions
	A4. Erickson - EQB questions (2)
	A5. Conditional Use Order_ Houston County
	A6. Houston County Board Directive
	A7. Conditional Use Permit Renewals
	A8. City Ordinance and Minnesota Statute
	A9. Houston County Lease Agreements and dissolutions
	A10. DNR letter - trout stream setback permit (2)
	A11. Houston County letter in response to DNR letter june 2014 (2)
	A12. Writ of Mandamus signed 6-2-2014 (2)
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

